
BOARD MEMBERS STAFF 
Danny England, Chairman      Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Boris Thomas, Vice-Chairman Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
John Kruzan    Maria Binns, Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
Jim Oliver         E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney 
Virgil Hooper  
______________________________________________________________________________

AGENDA 
FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

140 STONEWALL AVENUE WEST 
February 05, 2026 

7:00 pm 

*Please turn off or turn to mute all electronic devices during the
Planning Commission Meetings      

________________________________________________________________________ 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda.

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on January 15, 2026

5. Plats

a. Minor Final Plat of Fayette Padgett 14.

PUBLIC HEARING 

6. Consideration of Petition RDP-022-26, Ted V. Ehrhart, Owner. Applicant request approval of
a Revised Development Plan to allow the subdivision of Parcel 0508 031 into two (2) parcels,
within the Coventry Estates Subdivision. Property is located in Land Lots 34 of the 5th District
and fronts Brookshire Drive.

7. Consideration of Petition RDP-023-26, Phoebe Jernigan Bryan, Trustee of the David Gerald
Stout Bryan Spousal Trust, Owner. Applicant request approval of a Revised Development Plan
to allow the subdivision of Parcel 0515 037 into six (6) parcels, within the Coventry Estates
Subdivision. Property is located in Land Lots 65 and 66 of the 5th District and fronts Lester
Road and Red Fox Run.



Meeting Minutes 01/15/2026 

Page 1 
Draft 

THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on January 15th, 2026, at 7:00 
P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville,
Georgia.

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Kruzan, Chairman   
Danny England, Vice-Chairman 
John H. Culbreth Sr 
Jim Oliver 
Boris Thomas 

STAFF PRESENT: Debbie Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator   
Maria Binns, Zoning Secretary  
E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney

________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order. Vice-Chairman Danny England called the January 15, 2026, meeting
to order at 7:01 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Vice-Chairman Danny England offered the invocation and led
the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda. Jim Oliver made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Boris Thomas seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0.  Deborah Bell, Planning
and Zoning Director, and Chairman John Kruzan were absent.

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on December 4, 2025. Jim Oliver
made a motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held on December 4, 2025. Boris
Thomas seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0.

5. Plats. No Plats were presented on January 15, 2026, hearing.

6. Installation of Mr. Virgil Hooper as New Board Member. E. Allison Ivey Cox, County
Attorney read the Oath of Office to Virgil Hooper, who was sworn in as a board
member of the Planning Commission.

7. Election of the Chairman. Jim Oliver made the motion to elect Danny England as the
Chairman of the 2026 Fayette County Planning Commission. Boris Thomas seconded
the motion. The motion passed 4-0.

8. Election of the Vice-Chairman. Jim Oliver made the motion to elect Boris Thomas as
the Vice Chairman of the 2026 Fayette County Planning Commission. Chairman
Danny England seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0.



PC Minutes 
January 15, 2026 

Page 2 

9. Election of the Secretary. Jim Oliver made the motion to elect Maria Binns as the
Secretary of the 2026 Fayette County Planning Commission. Vice- Chairman Boris
Thomas seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0.

PUBLIC HEARING 

10. Consideration of Petition 1374-25, Joseph Revees Akin Jr, Owner. Applicant proposes to
rezone 3.1 acres from R-40 (Single Family) to A-R (Agricultural Residential Single Family).
Property is located in Land Lots 198 of the 13th District and fronts Highway 314.

Staff are requesting a motion to table Petition 1374-25 until March 5, 2026, pending the
outcome of Petition No. 1372-25-A-B, with the Board of Commissioners on February 26,
2026.

Petition 1374-25 was tabled for the March 5, 2026, Planning Commission Meeting. Jim
Oliver made a motion to ACCEPT THE MOTION TO TABLED PETITION 1374-25 TO
THE MARCH 5, 2026 Planning Commission Meeting, Vice- Chairman Boris Thomas
seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0.

 ****************** 

Jim Oliver moved to adjourn the January 15, 2026, Planning Commission meeting. Virgil Hooper 
seconded. The motion passed 4-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:07 pm. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
      OF 

ATTEST:  FAYETTE COUNTY 

______________________________________ 
 DANNY ENGLAND, CHAIRMAN 

__________________________ _______ 
DEBORAH BELL 
DIRECTOR, PLANNING & ZONING  













pg. 1 RDP-022-26

RDP-022-26 

REQUESTED ACTION:  Revise the Development Plan for Coventry Estates 

PARCEL NUMBER:  0508  031 

PROPOSED USE:  R-40, Single-Family Subdivision 

EXISTING USE:  Lot in single-family residential neighborhood  

LOCATION:  Lot 48, Coventry Estates aka 245 Brookshire Dr. 

ZONING: R-40, Single-Family Residential 

LOT SIZE:  4.75 Acres 

DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  5th District, Land Lot 34 

OWNER(S):  Ted Ehrhart 

AGENTS:  N/A 

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  February 5, 2026  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  February 26, 2026 

REQUEST 

Per Sec. 104-595.(2)h.2., proposed revisions to a recorded major final plat shall, after prescribed 
public notice, be considered in public hearings before the planning commission and board of 
commissioners. 

APPLICANT'S INTENT 

Applicant proposes to revise the development plan for Coventry Estates by subdividing Lot 48, 
consisting of 4.75 Acres, into 2 parcels. Proposed Lot 48-A will consist of approximately 2.73 acres 
and proposed Lot 48-B will consist of approximately 2.02 acres.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to the following condition(s): 



pg. 2 RDP-022-26

1. Fayette County Watershed Protection Ordinance will apply to the parcel(s).  Existing
structures shown to be in the watershed protection setbacks on a new final plat will be
allowed to remain, however no new structures or expansion into the Watershed Protection
setbacks will be permitted.



pg. 3 RDP-022-26

STAFF ASSESSMENT 

At 4.75 acres, the lot is a legal lot of record and meets or exceeds all the requirements of the R-40 
zoning district.  Both proposed lots will continue to meet the requirements of the R-40 district. 
The existing structures on Lot 48-A will meet these requirements if the property is subdivided as 
per the concept plan.  It is staff’s opinion that this change in the development is not likely to 
adversely impact the existing subdivision by adding a residential lot.  

FACTORS TO CONSIDER STAFF ASSESSMENT 
(i) Street character. Whether the request will result in a residence

or accessory structure that will be out of character with the
alignment of existing residences and accessory structures.
Aspects to consider are the front setback established on the
final plat, the alignment of existing residences and accessory
structures, the degree a proposed residence or accessory
structure will be out of alignment with the setback and/or
existing residences and accessory structures and the
presence of vegetation (trees, bushes, shrubbery, etc.) which
may provide visual screening.

This request does not add or alter 
the location or setback of any 
structures and should not 
significantly alter the character of 
the neighborhood. The existing 
homes are set well back from the 
road, and some of them are set 
near the very backs of the lots. 

(ii) Lot size character. Whether the request will result in a lot that
will be out of character with the size of existing lots. Aspects
to consider are the lot width required by the zoning district,
the minimum and maximum range of lots sizes, the number
of lots within a size range, the average lot size and the degree
proposed lots will be smaller than existing lots.

This request would not change the 
character of the residential lots. 
Several of the larger lots have been 
subdivided previously. 

(iii) Lot width character. Whether the request will result in a lot
that will be out of character with the width of existing lots.
Aspects to consider are the lot width required by the zoning
district, the minimum and maximum range of lot widths, the
lot widths within a range, the average lot width and the
degree proposed lots will be more narrow than existing lots.

The lot width character will be 
somewhat different. The road 
frontage requirement will be met, 
then the lot will be wider at the rear 
to accommodate a house with the 
appropriate lot width and setbacks. 

(iv) Change of principal use. Whether the change of use will 
adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 
nearby property, will result in a use which will or could cause 
an excessive or burdensome use of existing or planned 
streets, or utilities, or other conditions which give supporting 
grounds for either approval or disapproval of the change of 
use proposal. 

The proposal will not change the 
use of property; the new lot will be 
single-family residential and is large 
enough to retain the agricultural 
character of the neighborhood.   



 pg. 4 RDP-022-26 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

The subject property is currently zoned R-40 (Single-Family Residential). It is platted as lot 
48 in Coventry Estates subdivision, recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 105, on September 15, 
1969. This property is not located in an Overlay District. 

 
Rezoning History:  

 
The property is depicted as R-40 on the 1971 Zoning Map. 
 
The Tax Map below provides the early layout of the subdivision. 
 

 
 
 
  



 pg. 5 RDP-022-26 

B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES 
 

The parcels surrounding the subject property are all zoned R-40 and the Future Land Use 
Map for all these parcels is Low Density Residential, 1 Unit/ Acres and Environmentally 
Sensitive Areas.  See the following table and the attached Zoning Map. The subject property 
is bounded by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses: 
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 9.80 R-40 Single-family 
Residential 

Low Density Residential – 1-
acre minimum / 
Environmentally Sensitive 
Area 

South  5.50 R-40 
Single-family 
Residential 

Low Density Residential – 1-
acre minimum / 
Environmentally Sensitive 
Area 

East 3.7 R-40 Single-Family 
Residential 

Low Density Residential – 1-
acre minimum 

West 6.97 R-40 Single-Family 
Residential 

Environmentally Sensitive 
Area 

 
C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

Future Land Use Plan: The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density 
Residential and Environmentally Sensitive Areas on the Future Land Use Plan map. This 
request conforms to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW 
           

Access & Right-of Way: The property has existing access on Brookshire Drive. 
 

Site Plan: The applicant submitted a concept plan for the property. It DOES meet the 
current requirements for R-40, which requires that a parcel be at least 65,340 square feet 
(1.5 acres) in size where neither a central sanitary sewer nor a central water distribution 
system is provided.  
 

F. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 
 Water System – Fayette County Water System has no objections to the Revised 

Development Plan.  Area is not served by Fayette County Water System.  
 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections.   

o Site Distance - Brookshire Drive has a speed limit of 25 MPH, requiring 280-
ft of sight distance. 



pg. 6 RDP-022-26

o Access Management - Brookshire Drive is a County Local with an apparent
50-ft right of way.  There is no traffic data for Brookshire Drive. A driveway
permit will be required for the new lot.

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection. However, the 
following criteria apply and must be reflected in the final plat. 

o Floodplain Management - The property DOES contain floodplain per
FEMA FIRM panel 13113C0111E dated September 26, 2008.  The
property DOES contain floodplain delineated in the FC 2013 Dewberry
Flood Study.

o Wetlands - The property DOES contain wetlands per the U.S.
Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National
Wetland Inventory Map.  The owner or developer may be responsible
for submitting proper documentation during the development process
as to the existence or non-existence of wetlands depending on the plan
submitted.

o Watershed Protection - It has not been determined if there are state
waters located on the subject property. The site WILL BE subject to the
Fayette County Watershed Protection Ordinance upon subdivision.

o Groundwater - The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge
area.

o Post Construction Stormwater Management - This development
WILL NOT BE subject to the Post-Development Stormwater
Management Ordinance if re-zoned and developed with more than
5,000 square feet of impervious surfaces for a major subdivision or
commercial site plan.

 Fire – No comment. 
 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route. 



 pg. 7 RDP-022-26 

STANDARDS FOR CONSIDERATION OF A REVISED DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
Article XV. – Subdivision Regulations.  
 
Sec. 104-595. – Approval of subdivisions. 
 

(2) Major or minor final plat. 
 

h.   Revision to a recorded final plat.    
 

[Staff Note: Please refer to the table on the page 2 for staff assessment of these factors.] 
 

1. A revision to a recorded final plat shall show the name, phase (if any), date of the 
recorded subdivision plat being revised, and the exact citation with regard to the clerk of 
superior court records and the book and page number wherein said plat is recorded. 
See section 104-596 for requirements to be indicated on the revised final plat, as 
applicable. In addition, proposed revisions to a recorded final plat that substantially 
changes the street and/or utility layout, unless initiated by the county, shall require a 
revised preliminary plat in accordance with this section. 
 

2. Proposed revisions to a recorded major final plat of any existing residential or 
agricultural-residential subdivisions which adds property to, increases the number of 
platted lots, or changes the principal use on a lot shall be considered in public hearings 
before the planning commission and the board of commissioners and public notification 
shall comply with section 110-301, Public notification. The following factors shall be 
considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the 
board of commissioners when reviewing these requests: 

 
i. Street character. Whether the request will result in a residence or accessory 

structure that will be out of character with the alignment of existing residences 
and accessory structures. Aspects to consider are the front setback established on 
the final plat, the alignment of existing residences and accessory structures, the 
degree a proposed residence or accessory structure will be out of alignment with 
the setback and/or existing residences and accessory structures and the presence 
of vegetation (trees, bushes, shrubbery, etc.) which may provide visual screening. 

ii. Lot size character. Whether the request will result in a lot that will be out of 
character with the size of existing lots. Aspects to consider are the lot width 
required by the zoning district, the minimum and maximum range of lots sizes, 
the number of lots within a size range, the average lot size and the degree 
proposed lots will be smaller than existing lots. 

iii. Lot width character. Whether the request will result in a lot that will be out of 
character with the width of existing lots. Aspects to consider are the lot width 
required by the zoning district, the minimum and maximum range of lot widths, 



 pg. 8 RDP-022-26 

the lot widths within a range, the average lot width and the degree proposed lots 
will be more narrow than existing lots. 

iv. Change of principal use. Whether the change of use will adversely affect the existing 
use or usability of adjacent or nearby property, will result in a use which will or 
could cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing or planned streets, or 
utilities, or other conditions which give supporting grounds for either approval or 
disapproval of the change of use proposal. 

 
  



 pg. 9 RDP-022-26 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

Sec. 110-137. R-40, Single-Family Residential District. 

(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures in the county, 
having a low density single-family residential character and is designed to protect against 
the depreciating effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with such a 
residential environment.  

(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the R-40 zoning district:  

(1) Single-family dwelling;  

(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter); and  

(3) Growing crops, gardens.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the R-40 zoning district 
provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met:  

(1) Church and/or other place of worship;  

(2) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas;  

(3) Home occupation;  

(4) Horse quarters; and  

(5) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, 
housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium.  

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the R-40 zoning 
district shall be as follows:  

(1) Lot area per dwelling unit:  

a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution systems are provided: 
43,560 square feet (one acre).  

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water distribution system is 
provided: 65,340 square feet (1.5 acres).  

(2) Lot width:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  

1. Arterial: 150 feet.  
2. Collector: 150 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet.  

(3) Floor area: 1,500 square feet.  

(4) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  

1. Arterial: 60 feet.  



 pg. 10 RDP-022-26 

2. Collector: 60 feet.  
b. Minor thoroughfare: 40 feet.  

(5) Rear yard setback: 30 feet.  

(6) Side yard setback: 15 feet.  

(7) Height limit: 35 feet.  



 pg. 11 RDP-022-26 

 
 
 
 



pg. 12 RDP-022-26



pg. 13 RDP-022-26



pg. 14 RDP-022-26



 pg. 15 RDP-022-26 

 
 
 



 pg. 16 RDP-022-26 

 



pg. 17 RDP-022-26



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



























 pg. 1 RDP-023-26 

RDP-023-26 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Revise the Development Plan for Coventry Estates       
   
PARCEL NUMBER:  0515  037 

 
PROPOSED USE:  R-40, Single-Family Subdivision 
 
EXISTING USE:  Lot in single-family residential neighborhood  
 
LOCATION:  Coventry Estates aka 538 Lester Rd. 
 
ZONING: R-40, Single-Family Residential 
 
LOT SIZE:  21.15 Acres 
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  5th District, Land Lots 65 and 66 
 
OWNER(S):  David Gerald Stout Bryan Spousal Trust, Phoebe Jernigan Bryan, Trustee 
 
AGENTS:  N/A 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  February 5, 2026  
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  February 26, 2026 
 
 
 
REQUEST 
 
Per Sec. 104-595.(2)h.2., proposed revisions to a recorded major final plat shall, after prescribed 
public notice, be considered in public hearings before the planning commission and board of 
commissioners. 
 
APPLICANT'S INTENT 
 
Applicant proposes to revise the development plan for Coventry Estates by subdividing 538 Lester 
Road, consisting of 21.15 Acres, into 6 parcels. Proposed Lot 1 will consist of approximately 4.13 
acres, proposed Lot 2 is 3.66 acres, Lot 3 is 3.23 acres, Lot 4 is 3.31 acres, Lot 5 is 3.31 acres, and 
proposed Lot 6 is 3.51 acres.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to the following condition(s): 



 pg. 2 RDP-023-26 

 
1. Fayette County Watershed Protection Ordinance will apply to the parcels upon subdivision. 

 
 
 



 pg. 3 RDP-023-26 

STAFF ASSESSMENT 

At 21.15 acres, the lot is a legal lot of record and meets or exceeds all the requirements of the R-40 
zoning district.  All proposed lots will continue to meet the requirements of the R-40 district. The 
existing structures on Lot 1 are required to be removed since an accessory structure cannot exist 
without a primary structure if the property is subdivided as per the concept plan.  It is staff’s opinion 
that this change in the development is not likely to adversely impact the existing subdivision by 
adding a residential lot.  
 

 FACTORS TO CONSIDER STAFF ASSESSMENT 
(i) Street character. Whether the request will result in a residence 

or accessory structure that will be out of character with the 
alignment of existing residences and accessory structures. 
Aspects to consider are the front setback established on the 
final plat, the alignment of existing residences and accessory 
structures, the degree a proposed residence or accessory 
structure will be out of alignment with the setback and/or 
existing residences and accessory structures and the presence 
of vegetation (trees, bushes, shrubbery, etc.) which may 
provide visual screening. 
 

This request does not add or alter 
the location or setback of any 
structures and should not 
significantly alter the character of 
the neighborhood. The existing 
homes are set well back from the 
road, and some of them are set near 
the very backs of the lots. 

(ii) Lot size character. Whether the request will result in a lot that 
will be out of character with the size of existing lots. Aspects to 
consider are the lot width required by the zoning district, the 
minimum and maximum range of lots sizes, the number of lots 
within a size range, the average lot size and the degree 
proposed lots will be smaller than existing lots. 
 

This request would not change the 
character of the residential lots. 
Several of the larger lots have been 
subdivided previously. 

(iii) Lot width character. Whether the request will result in a lot that 
will be out of character with the width of existing lots. Aspects 
to consider are the lot width required by the zoning district, 
the minimum and maximum range of lot widths, the lot widths 
within a range, the average lot width and the degree proposed 
lots will be more narrow than existing lots. 

 

The lot width character will be 
somewhat different. The road 
frontage requirement will be met, 
then the lot will be wider at the rear 
to accommodate a house with the 
appropriate lot width and setbacks. 

(iv) Change of principal use. Whether the change of use will 
adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 
nearby property, will result in a use which will or could cause 
an excessive or burdensome use of existing or planned 
streets, or utilities, or other conditions which give supporting 
grounds for either approval or disapproval of the change of 
use proposal. 

 

The proposal will not change the use 
of property; the new lot will be single-
family residential and is large 
enough to retain the agricultural 
character of the neighborhood.   
 



 pg. 4 RDP-023-26 

INVESTIGATION 
 
A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

The subject property is currently zoned R-40 (Single-Family Residential). It is platted as a lot  
in Coventry Estates subdivision, recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 105, on August 15, 1969. This 
property is not located in an Overlay District. 

 
Rezoning History:  

 
The property is depicted as R-40 on the 1971 Zoning Map. 
 
The Tax Plat below provides the best depction of the early layout of the subdivision. 
 

 
 
  



 pg. 5 RDP-023-26 

B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES 
 

The parcels surrounding the subject property are all zoned A-R and the Future Land Use 
Map for all these parcels is Rural Residential-2, 1 Unit/2 Acres and Rural Residential-3, 1 
Unit/3 Acres. See the following table and the attached Zoning Map. The subject property is 
bounded by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses: 
 

Direction Acreage Zoning Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 6.70 R-40 
Single-family 
Residential 

Rural Residential - 3 

South  
5.00 
 
20.80 

A-R 
 
A-R & 
R-40 

Agricultural-
Residential 

Rural Residential - 3 

East 

4.50 
 
4.20 
 
7.40 

R-40 
Single-Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential – 2 and 
Rural Residential - 3 

West 

5.40 
 
2.10 
 
2.00 

R-70 
Single-Family 
Residential 

Rural Residential - 3 

 
C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

Future Land Use Plan: The subject property lies within an area designated for Rural 
Residential – 2 and Rural Residential - 3 on the Future Land Use Plan map. This request 
conforms to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW 
           

Access & Right-of Way: The property has existing access on Lester Road and Red Fox Fun. 
 

Site Plan: The applicant submitted a concept plan for the property. It DOES meet the 
current requirements for R-40, which requires that a parcel be at least 65,340 square feet 
(1.5 acres) in size where neither a central sanitary sewer nor a central water distribution 
system is provided.  

  



 pg. 6 RDP-023-26 

F. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 
 Water System – Water is not within the distance required to connect to publid 

water system by approximately 500 feet.  Fayette County Water System has no 
objections to this revised development plan.  

 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections.   
o Site Distance - The speed limit on Lester Road is 35 MPH, requiring 390-

ft. of sight distance.  Red Fox Run has a speed limit of 25 MPH, requiring 
280-ft of sight distance.   

o Access Management - Lester Road is a Minor Arterial with an apparent 
60-ft right of way. Red Fox Run is a County Local with an apparent 50-ft 
right of way.  There is no traffic data for these roads. A driveway permit 
will be required for each new lot. 

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection. However, the 
following criteria apply and must be reflected in the final plat. 

o Floodplain Management - The property DOES NOT contain floodplain 
per FEMA FIRM panels 13113C0092E and 13113C0111E dated September 
26, 2008.  The property DOES NOT contain additional flood plain 
delineated in the FC 2013 Dewberry Flood Study.   

o Wetlands - The property DOES contain wetlands per the U.S. 
Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National 
Wetland Inventory Map.  The owner or developer will be responsible for 
submitting proper documentation during the development process as to 
the existence or non-existence of wetlands. 

o Watershed Protection - There ARE state waters located on the subject 
property and the site WILL BE subject to the Fayette County Watershed 
Protection Ordinance upon subdivision. 

o Groundwater - The property IS within a groundwater recharge area. 
 Post Construction Stormwater Management - This development WILL NOT BE 

subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned 
and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surfaces for a major 
subdivision or commercial site plan. 

 Fire – Mandatory water connection not required due to the distance to existing 
water service. 

 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route. 
  



 pg. 7 RDP-023-26 

STANDARDS FOR CONSIDERATION OF A REVISED DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
Article XV. – Subdivision Regulations.  
 
Sec. 104-595. – Approval of subdivisions. 
 

(2) Major or minor final plat. 
 

h.   Revision to a recorded final plat.    
 

[Staff Note: Please refer to the table on the page 2 for staff assessment of these factors.] 
 

1. A revision to a recorded final plat shall show the name, phase (if any), date of the recorded 
subdivision plat being revised, and the exact citation with regard to the clerk of superior 
court records and the book and page number wherein said plat is recorded. See section 
104-596 for requirements to be indicated on the revised final plat, as applicable. In 
addition, proposed revisions to a recorded final plat that substantially changes the street 
and/or utility layout, unless initiated by the county, shall require a revised preliminary plat 
in accordance with this section. 
 

2. Proposed revisions to a recorded major final plat of any existing residential or agricultural-
residential subdivisions which adds property to, increases the number of platted lots, or 
changes the principal use on a lot shall be considered in public hearings before the 
planning commission and the board of commissioners and public notification shall comply 
with section 110-301, Public notification. The following factors shall be considered by the 
planning and zoning department, the planning commission and the board of 
commissioners when reviewing these requests: 

 
i. Street character. Whether the request will result in a residence or accessory 

structure that will be out of character with the alignment of existing residences and 
accessory structures. Aspects to consider are the front setback established on the 
final plat, the alignment of existing residences and accessory structures, the degree 
a proposed residence or accessory structure will be out of alignment with the 
setback and/or existing residences and accessory structures and the presence of 
vegetation (trees, bushes, shrubbery, etc.) which may provide visual screening. 

ii. Lot size character. Whether the request will result in a lot that will be out of character 
with the size of existing lots. Aspects to consider are the lot width required by the 
zoning district, the minimum and maximum range of lots sizes, the number of lots 
within a size range, the average lot size and the degree proposed lots will be smaller 
than existing lots. 

iii. Lot width character. Whether the request will result in a lot that will be out of 
character with the width of existing lots. Aspects to consider are the lot width 
required by the zoning district, the minimum and maximum range of lot widths, the 

https://library.municode.com/ga/fayette_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOCO_CH104DERE_ARTXVSURE_S104-596THSUPL
https://library.municode.com/ga/fayette_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOCO_CH104DERE_ARTXVSURE_S104-596THSUPL
https://library.municode.com/ga/fayette_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOCO_CH110ZO_ARTIXPOPRSTGOAM_S110-301PUNO


 pg. 8 RDP-023-26 

lot widths within a range, the average lot width and the degree proposed lots will 
be more narrow than existing lots. 

iv. Change of principal use. Whether the change of use will adversely affect the existing 
use or usability of adjacent or nearby property, will result in a use which will or could 
cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing or planned streets, or utilities, or 
other conditions which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval 
of the change of use proposal. 

 
  



 pg. 9 RDP-023-26 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

Sec. 110-137. R-40, Single-Family Residential District. 

(a) Description of district. This district is composed of certain lands and structures in the county, having a 
low density single-family residential character and is designed to protect against the depreciating 
effects of small lot development and those uses incompatible with such a residential environment.  

(b) Permitted uses. The following permitted uses shall be allowed in the R-40 zoning district:  

(1) Single-family dwelling;  

(2) Residential accessory structures and uses (see article III of this chapter); and  

(3) Growing crops, gardens.  

(c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the R-40 zoning district provided 
that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met:  

(1) Church and/or other place of worship;  

(2) Developed residential recreational/amenity areas;  

(3) Home occupation;  

(4) Horse quarters; and  

(5) Private school, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, playground, housing, 
athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium.  

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements within the R-40 zoning district 
shall be as follows:  

(1) Lot area per dwelling unit:  

a. Where central sanitary sewage or central water distribution systems are provided: 43,560 
square feet (one acre).  

b. Where neither a central sanitary sewage nor a central water distribution system is 
provided: 65,340 square feet (1.5 acres).  

(2) Lot width:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  

1. Arterial: 150 feet.  
2. Collector: 150 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 125 feet.  

(3) Floor area: 1,500 square feet.  

(4) Front yard setback:  

a. Major thoroughfare:  

1. Arterial: 60 feet.  
2. Collector: 60 feet.  

b. Minor thoroughfare: 40 feet.  

(5) Rear yard setback: 30 feet.  



 pg. 10 RDP-023-26 

(6) Side yard setback: 15 feet.  

(7) Height limit: 35 feet.  

 

 



 pg. 11 RDP-023-26 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 12 RDP-023-26 

 



 pg. 13 RDP-023-26 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 14 RDP-023-26 

 
 
 



 pg. 15 RDP-023-26 

 
 
 



 pg. 16 RDP-023-26 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 17 RDP-023-26 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 pg. 18 RDP-023-26 

 
CONCEPT PLAN 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle





mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle






















	Fayette Padgett 14.pdf
	HPSCANNER3317
	HPSCANNER3318
	HPSCANNER3319
	HPSCANNER3320
	HPSCANNER3321

	RDP-023-26 Staff Report - COMPLETED.pdf
	RDP-023-26
	PARCEL NUMBER:  0515  037
	PROPOSED USE:  R-40, Single-Family Subdivision
	EXISTING USE:  Lot in single-family residential neighborhood
	LOCATION:  Coventry Estates aka 538 Lester Rd.
	ZONING: R-40, Single-Family Residential
	LOT SIZE:  21.15 Acres
	OWNER(S):  David Gerald Stout Bryan Spousal Trust, Phoebe Jernigan Bryan, Trustee
	AGENTS:  N/A
	PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  February 5, 2026
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  February 26, 2026
	REQUEST
	Per Sec. 104-595.(2)h.2., proposed revisions to a recorded major final plat shall, after prescribed public notice, be considered in public hearings before the planning commission and board of commissioners.
	APPLICANT'S INTENT
	A. GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION
	B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES
	C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW
	Access & Right-of Way: The property has existing access on Lester Road and Red Fox Fun.
	Site Plan: The applicant submitted a concept plan for the property. It DOES meet the current requirements for R-40, which requires that a parcel be at least 65,340 square feet (1.5 acres) in size where neither a central sanitary sewer nor a central wa...
	F. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – Water is not within the distance required to connect to publid water system by approximately 500 feet.  Fayette County Water System has no objections to this revised development plan.
	 Public Works/Environmental Management – No objections.
	o Site Distance - The speed limit on Lester Road is 35 MPH, requiring 390-ft. of sight distance.  Red Fox Run has a speed limit of 25 MPH, requiring 280-ft of sight distance.
	o Access Management - Lester Road is a Minor Arterial with an apparent 60-ft right of way. Red Fox Run is a County Local with an apparent 50-ft right of way.  There is no traffic data for these roads. A driveway permit will be required for each new lot.
	 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection. However, the following criteria apply and must be reflected in the final plat.
	 Post Construction Stormwater Management - This development WILL NOT BE subject to the Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance if re-zoned and developed with more than 5,000 square feet of impervious surfaces for a major subdivision or comme...
	 Fire – Mandatory water connection not required due to the distance to existing water service.
	 GDOT – Not applicable, not on State Route.
	STANDARDS FOR CONSIDERATION OF A REVISED DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	Sec. 110-137. R-40, Single-Family Residential District.


	Fayette Padgett 14.pdf
	HPSCANNER3317
	HPSCANNER3318
	HPSCANNER3319
	HPSCANNER3320
	HPSCANNER3321




